
 

1 
 

Minutes of the May 11, 2015 

Regular Meeting  

 

 

TOWN OF ARRIBA 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Monday May 11, 2015 

Arriba Town Hall, 711 Front Street, Arriba, CO  80804 

 

Call to Order Mayor Flores called the meeting to order at 7:35. Roll call for the Arriba 

Town Board was read and those answering were Karen Kovar, Jody Schifferns, and 

Marcella Flores. Troy McCue arrived shortly after the meeting began. Caleb Brent and 

Will Rowe were absent. 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Karen Kovar. 

Public Audience included: Ted Grundmeier, Jack Eberle, Kenny Mills, Lynn Francis, 

Jeff Fike, M.L. Skipper, Russ Pilgrim, Michael Shirley and Jay Spurling. 

Jeff Fike read a letter he had written to the Board (the letter is attached to the minutes and 

by mention is a part of these minutes). In the letter he states that Marcella Flores being a 

Town Trustee and Alex Flores being Mayor had the distinct appearance of impropriety. 

He said that most if not all Arriba citizens felt that the appointment of Marcella Flores 

was a clear conflict of interest, effectively giving Mayor Flores a vote in addition to his 

role as a tie breaker, which was actually done on November 10th. The vote was 2 to 2 

whether or not to appoint Will Rowe or Twila Schoonover to the Town Board. Mayor 

Flores broke the tie. 

Jeff Fike said that Trustee McCue serving as a Town of Arriba Trustee while now being a 

paid director of the Lincoln County Economic Development Corporation also appears to 

be a conflict of interest. He asked what the Town of Arriba bylaws, Town Charter or 

vesting documents say about this.  

Trustee McCue said that the office of LCEDC didn’t exist until 2003, and so the Town 

charter or bylaws doesn’t speak to it at all. He said that when he got the position as 

director of LCEDC he talked to Mayor Flores and had told the Town Board that if they 

felt there was any sort of conflict of interest to let him know. Initially if the Board had 

felt that there was a conflict of interest he said he would have resigned. He said that at 

that time he let it be known that any issues regarding a decision related to economic 

development whether it be a renewal of the contribution dues and / or any decision that 

he would have direct influence on from his job he would have to abstain.  

Jeff Fike explained that when Lisa Nolder was the director of LCEDC she had mentioned 

that money could be gotten via LCEDC to take care of abandoned houses, the Board has 



 

2 
 

been pushing for cleanup of these abandoned houses and now Troy McCue is LCEDC 

director as well as a Town of Arriba Board of Trustee.  

Trustee McCue said that he only knows of two programs that would pertain to property 

cleanup one through the federal government which is chemical related, the other program 

being the Lincoln County Tourism Board which is promoting a matching program where 

they could help property cleanup. He said that he doesn’t have any personal or 

professional vested interest to do that other than trying to improve the Town as a Trustee.  

Jeff Fike asked what the bylaws say about who can be on the Town Board. 

Clerk Hart said the only requirements were registered voter and a resident for 12 months. 

Clerk Hart said that before Trustee Flores was appointed she (Clerk Hart) had researched 

it and other Town’s do allow husbands and wives to both be on the Board. Clerk Hart 

said that the vacant Board positions were properly advertised in the local newspapers for 

3 weeks, and advertised around town. She said that only 2 people showed up interested in 

the Board positions. Ted Grundmeier corrected her saying that actually 3 people showed 

up. Clerk Hart said he was right, Karen Kovar, Marcella Flores and Ted Grundmeier 

showed up interested in the 2 Board positions. The Board voted and Karen Kovar and 

Marcella Flores were appointed to the Board. Clerk Hart said that if he (Jeff Fike) wanted 

to have a recall that she could give him the information needed on a Town Hall business 

day. 

Jeff Fike said that he had a question concerning a meeting on November 10 where there 

were 2 votes for appointing Will Rowe to Mike Koehn’s vacated position and 2 votes for 

appointing Twila Schoonover. Jeff Fike asked who voted for whom. Clerk Hart said that 

it was a secret ballot, she tallied the votes and Mayor Flores broke the tie not knowing 

who voted for whom. 

 

Jack Eberle said that he has been trying to get his properties cleaned up but the weather 

wasn’t cooperating. 

Kenny Mills said that when he served on the Town Board his wife Susie and he both 

considered running for the Town Board. He said that at the time they felt that it would be 

an impropriety to have two family members on the board at the same time. He said that 

he agreed that there was an impropriety with Mayor Flores and Trustee Flores both being 

on the Board. He said that the Board needed to stop hassling the people of Arriba. He 

asked the Board to please use some constraint. He was against writing 5 page ordinances. 

He made the point that the Board needed to be fair.  

Jay Spurling said he wanted everyone to get along and that things get done correctly. He 

asked where the Town charter or bylaws were.  

Jeff Fike said that he had found the proceedings of incorporation. 

Clerk Hart said that it was her understanding that Arriba just had the Ordinances. 



 

3 
 

Jeff Fike said that Ordinance #11 refers to Town bylaws. He said that he looked into 

finding the charter at the Lincoln County Clerk where he found the incorporation 

document. Then he went to the state archives and paid them to do a little research into it. 

The Board wondered if the charter or bylaws were destroyed when there was water 

damage to town hall.  

Russ Pilgrim questioned why a resident was having to research and pay for this 

information when it was the Mayor and Town Board’s responsibility to have this 

information. 

Clerk Hart said that the Town has always referred to its ordinances and Colorado State 

Statutes. 

Jay Spurling said that when he looked at the revised Mobile Home Ordinance it looked to 

him like the Town was trying to outlaw RVs from the Town. 

Lynn Francis said that it seemed to her that Jeff Fike wanted to be on the Board and that 

he was going about it the wrong way, and that he was personally attacking Marcella 

Flores and Troy McCue. 

Approval of Agenda Trustee McCue moved to approve the Agenda as written. Trustee 

Kovar seconded and the motion passed. 

Approval of Minutes Trustee Kovar moved to approve the minutes of the April 13 

Regular Meeting and April 28 Action Meeting. Trustee McCue seconded and the motion 

passed. 

Approval of Accounts Receivable and Payable April The Board reviewed the 

receivables and payables. Clerk Hart answered general questions about the receivables 

and payables. Trustee McCue moved to approve the April receivables and payables. 

Trustee Kovar seconded and the motion passed.  

 

Approval to Pay May Bills Clerk Hart said that Paul Reida with Arriba Welding 

Technologies did an hour and half of labor out at the wastewater plant helping Leroy 

King with a water leak back in March, he has not billed the Town for it. The Board 

discussed what to pay Paul Reida for his time. Trustee McCue moved to approve the May 

bills for payment adding $75.00 to the invoice from Arriba Welding Technologies for the 

labor done at the wastewater plant. Trustee Schifferns seconded and the motion passed. 

Code Enforcement –Property Cleanup   The Board discussed what was going to be 

done about the blue trailer house on Smithburg’s property. Jeff Fike said that according 

to Bob Rush there are Swallows nesting in the trailer and legally with the Department of 

Wildlife the trailer can’t be touched until the nesting period is over for the Swallows. 

Trustee Schifferns asked Clerk Hart to follow up with the Department of Wildlife on this. 



 

4 
 

M.L Skipper said that she is the owner of 220 Church Street and she is in the process of 

cleaning it up. 

 The Board asked who hadn’t responded to the letters that had been sent out. Clerk Hart 

said that the Town has not heard anything directly from Monte Rand. The Board agreed 

that there has been some improvements on Monte Rand’s property.  

Trustee McCue asked if the Williams at 225 Pine Street had responded. Clerk Hart read 

their response: They had removed the front porch, they plan to repair metal roofing, they 

will trim trees and clean up back yard. If anybody wants a cheap priced property to 

contact Albert Williams. (Clerk Hart read out the phone number given in the letter.)  

 

Clerk Hart said that James Littlehorn has not responded. She said that Jeff Fike had 

volunteered to fill the hole on Littlehorn’s property if the Town provided the dirt.  

The Board discussed this saying that it sounded like a good thing but once the Town does 

it for one person they would have to do it for every person. 

Russ Pilgrim commented that the Town (the town only, not the public) can get free dirt, 

sand and rodo mill from CDOT, and said he would give contact information to Mayor 

Flores.  

Clerk Hart said she never sent a letter to Cindy Romero because her address is messed up 

at the moment as her sewer bills keep getting sent back. 

The Board told Clerk Hart to send James Littlehorn a letter. Clerk Hart asked what the 

Board wanted the letter to say. Trustee Kovar suggested informing Littlehorn that Jeff 

Fike has offered to help fill in the hole. Mayor Flores said to offer the Town’s help. 

Clerk Hart asked the Board if they approved of donating the dirt to fill the hole on 

Littlehorn’s property. Mayor Flores said that he would check with CDOT about getting 

some dirt before making a decision. 

Trustee Schifferns said that she thought the Town should send thank you letters to the 

people that have started cleaning up their properties. 

Jeff Fike said that he had application for deed for 105 Elm Street, and would soon 

hopefully start cleaning the property up. 

 

Mobile Home Ordinance Trustee Schifferns moved to have Town Attorney Stan 

Kimble review the proposed revised Mobile Home Ordinance #131. Trustee Flores 

seconded and the motion passed.  



 

5 
 

Mayor Flores explained that the proposed revised Mobile Home Ordinance can be looked 

at by anybody, and that this ordinance will have to be published and a hearing will be 

held before it can be adopted. 

Trustee McCue said that he had heard that as a statutory town Arriba can restrict mobile 

homes to be HUD approved, but not beyond that. He said that he would like to research 

this. 

Maintenance Leroy King had a written report of what he has worked on the past month 

(by mention the report is a part of these minutes).  

Mayor Flores asked Leroy King what it would take to get a backup generator for the well. 

Leroy King said it would probably be costly. The Board discussed how big of a generator 

would be needed, if 2 would be needed and that it would need to be set at the chlorine 

building. 

Russ Pilgrim commented that Leroy King does a good job and that the Board needs to 

give him a raise. 

Clerk Hart commented that as Leroy King gets his water and wastewater certificates he is 

supposed to get a raise. 

Clerks Report   Clerk Hart asked the Board if the letter to residents looked good to send 

out. Trustee Schifferns asked that ‘any other emergency’ be added to the letter but other 

than that it looked good to send out. The Board agreed. 

Jeff Fike asked if the Town has an Emergency plan. The Board said that the Town did an 

emergency plan with the county a few years ago. Trustee Schifferns said that the siren 

will go off for 5 minutes if there is a tornado and goes off for 1 minute when it’s all clear. 

Clerk Hart asked how long the Board wanted to run the ad for the community garage 

sale. The Board agreed that it should run for 2 weeks in the Flagler News, Mile Saver 

Shopper and Limon Leader. It was suggested to post something on Lincoln County Swap 

Shop on Facebook as well. 

Clerk Hart asked if there was going to be a May action meeting since Memorial Day is 

the 25th. The Board agreed that there would not be a May action meeting.  

Clerk Hart told the Board that she would not be at the June regular meeting because she 

is going on vacation so there probably won’t be any reports ready for the June regular 

meeting. 

 

Treasurers Report   Treasurer Pam Koehn had submitted the Town’s treasurer’s report. 

Trustee McCue moved to approve the treasurer’s report. Trustee Kovar seconded and the 

motion passed. 



 

6 
 

Trustees Report   Trustee Schifferns said that Free Dump Day is Saturday, May 16th at 

the Lincoln County Landfill. If the weather is bad it will be May 30th. She said that you 

can’t take tires, and that there is a list of things you can’t take at DJ’s. She asked if the 

Town owns the recycling bins, because if the Town doesn’t and is paying rent on them 

she thought the Town should buy a refurbished one for $600 instead of buying a new one 

for $1200. Clerk Hart said she hasn’t gotten ahold of anyone to find out for sure but was 

positive the Town owns the recycling bins. 

Trustee Schifferns said that she wanted to go into executive session after the Trustees 

Report. 

Trustee Kovar thanked everyone for attending the meeting. 

Trustee McCue gave a detailed update on what he has been doing with LCEDC. He said 

that he would be emailing a report out. He thanked the Board for letting him be routinely 

late to Board meetings since he has to report to Hugo before Arriba’s meetings. 

He explained how he writes his reports and records his visits to businesses. He said that 

as soon as he starts counseling a business and starts looking into their financial 

information he assigns them a project number which is how he will refer to that business 

in his reports to protect the business’ identity.  

He explained how Karval is working on a research center that will show that the rural 

agriculture ranching and farming lifestyle does not endanger these particular species. 

 

Mayors Report Mayor Flores thanked everyone for attending the meeting and voicing 

their opinions. 

Jay Spurling said that there is going to be a big BBQ fundraiser in the park on May 30th. 

He said that there will be a lot of motorcycles at the event as it is a Safe Shelter Run. 

Executive Session At 9:00pm Trustee Schifferns moved to go into Executive Session. 

Trustee McCue seconded and the motion passed. 

At 9:15pm the Executive Session ended. 
  

Adjournment Trustee Kovar moved to adjourn the meeting, Trustee Flores seconded. 

Mayor Flores adjourned the meeting at 9:16pm. 

Submitted by:   Josie Hart, Arriba Town Clerk 

Signed by: 

  Mayor Alex Flores 

Approved by the Board on: June 8, 2015 

 

 



 

7 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 
 

Maintenance Report 

 

4-14    Went to Flagler and had 4 new Goodyear tires put on pickup 

            Talk with Darrel about the sprayer and getting it calabated 

4-15    Took weekly chlorine and ph. Tests 

            Worked on cleaning up on west side shop 

4-16    Worked on draining water tank for repairs 

            Filled chlorine tank at wastewater plant 

4-17   Worked on draining water tank and checked on repairs 

            Start filling water tank on 4-20 

4-20   Started filling water tank at 8:30  

4-21   Worked on filling water tank 

           Checked heater in park building 

4-22   Took weekly chlorine and ph Tests 

            Worked on filling water tank 

4-23   Read well meters for the month 

           Leveled dirt around water tank  

           Turned water on at 223 Elm 

           Filled chlorine tank at wastewater plant 

4-24   Checked heater in park building 

           Worked on sprayer 

           Hung up NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ACCIDENTS OR INJURIES sign at enterance to north lot 

4-27   Order collection bottles for wastewater samples 

           Worked in the shop 

4-28   Started collecting samples to be taken to lab on the 29 

           Called Duerst to let them know tank repairs was done  

4-29   Finished collecting samples and sent them to the lab 

           Took weekly chlorine and ph Test 

           Graded College & Lincoln 

            Started mowing park 

4-30    Finished mowing and weed eat park 

            Read water meters 

            Filled chlorine tank at wastewater plant 

5-1      Hand sprayed weed at the park , water tank , town shop, town hall, dog pound and 

wastewater 

            plant 

            Mowed and weed eat around water tank and town hall 

 



 

9 
 

Maintenance Report 

 

5-4       Well meters were tested by Duerst 

             Found lines for 220 Church St 

5-5     Worked in the shop 

           Talked with  Darrel about fertilizer for park 

5-6     Took weekly chlorine and ph tests 

           Sprayed willow trees at wastewater plant 

5-7     Filled chlorine tank at wastewater plant 

           Worked on 3 point mower 

5-8     Finished work on 3 point mower 

5-11   Graded College and Lincoln streets  

           Pick up fertilizer and spray from Darrel 

         

 

 

 


